
High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Monday, 25 November 2019

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

15 November 2019

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5. Medium Term Financial Plan Update 

6. Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/2020 
(Pages 7 - 58)

7. Corporate Plan : Communication and Engagement Plan and Performance 
Framework Update 

8. Car Parking : Pay & Display machine upgrades 

9. Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 59 - 70)

10. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

11. Exclusion of Press and Public 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972

PART II
12. Exempt Minutes (Pages 71 - 74)

(Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 7 - Information relating to any individual. 

Public Document Pack



Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. )

13. Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa Project - Alternations to lease and support for 
Buxton Heritage Trust (To Follow)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

14. Contract Award Report P3954 Queens Court Roofing Works 
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

15. Contract Award - Supply and Installation of Windows and Doors Council Housing - 
Fixed Term Contract (Pages 75 - 92)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Corporate Select Committee
Councillor T Ashton (Chair) Councillor M Stone (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Collins Councillor O Cross
Councillor S Flower Councillor L Grooby
Councillor D Kerr Councillor D Lomax
Councillor R McKeown Councillor G Oakley
Councillor E Siddall Councillor E Thrane



High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE

Meeting: Monday, 30 September 2019 at 6.30 pm in Octagon Lounge, Pavilion 
Gardens, Buxton

Present: Councillor T Ashton (Chair) 

Councillors J Collins, O Cross, J Douglas (substitute for L Grooby), M Hall 
(substitute for M Stone), D Kerr, D Lomax, R McKeown, G Oakley and 
E Thrane

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Stone and L Grooby

20/16 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE 
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Hall declared an ‘other’ interest in agenda item 13 Lease of land 
at Serpentine Depot, Burlington Road, Buxton (reason: Director of the CI 
Company : Serpentine Community Farm)

20/17 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2019 be approved as a 
correct record, subject to the deletion of Councillor Lomax from the list of 
those present and the recording of his apology for absence.

20/18 1ST QUARTER FINANCIAL, PERFORMANCE AND PROCUREMENT 
REVIEW
(Agenda Item 5)

The Committee considered the Council’s overall performance and financial 
position for the period ended 30 June (1st Quarter 2019/20).

Specific reference was made to the £800,000 efficiency savings made for 
2019/20 against a target of £714,000, and a breakdown of where those 
savings had been achieved was provided.  An explanation for the shortfall in 
the business rates collection rate was also given, with it being noted that an 
adjustment would be made through the collection fund.  

Regarding procurement, there are a number of significant ‘high level’ areas 
of activity including CCTV maintenance contract and HRA capital works.  
The potential for electricity to be sourced from suppliers who buy from 
renewable generators was discussed, to which members were advised that Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 30 September 2019

2

a new procurement strategy was to be agreed and that currently, the energy 
contract included 48% renewables.

RESOLVED:

That the First Quarter 2019/20 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at paragraph 
3.3 of the covering report be noted.

20/19 CORPORATE PLAN 2019/23
(Agenda Item 6)

The Committee considered the Corporate Plan to cover the period 2019 to 
2023.  The plan sets out the Council’s vision, aims and objectives and 
provides clear direction for the delivery of services and the achievement of 
positive outcomes for residents.

The plan includes 20 key objectives across four aims and also includes a 
set of political visions.  It was suggested that a Performance Review 
Working Group be established to examine performance and ensure 
priorities and targets for the performance regime match the plan.  Quarterly 
reports would be made to Corporate Select Committee as well as an annual 
report to Council in October to enable performance and the plan to be 
reviewed.  

A number of comments were made, including:
 risk assessment (para 6.8), include reference to extreme weather 

events which could impact on the council’s performance
 development of the corporate plan / empirical evidence (para 8.1) – 

include environmental factors and / climate change
 jobs and businesses (para 9.7) encourage innovative business start 

ups and enterprises
 protect and improve the environment (para 9.7) – suggest remove 

reference to car parking and add to last bullet point reduce CO2 
emissions and other impacts on the natural environment

 priority outcomes (para 11.1) – protect and improve the environment 
– amend last bullet point to ‘through planning and delivering an 
effective response to climate change’ or ‘through delivering a plan’

 amend wording of the vision to include reference to ‘protect and 
invest’

 disappointed that financial resilience / competence has not been 
included

 refer to residents and businesses
 Performance Framework workshop to look at the outcome of the 

consultation process
 Welcome communication with Derbyshire and Greater Manchester to 

extend fares scheme, and work with businesses and organisations to 
encourage people to use public transport

 Re-chargeable points for cars in car parks
 New procurement strategy – ensure that local businesses are aware 

of tendering opportunitiesPage 4



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 30 September 2019

3

 Diversity policies – query how celebrate

RESOLVED:

That, subject to the above amendments, the Executive be requested to:
1. recommend that Council approves the Council’s vision, aims, 

objectives, influencing objectives and priorities;
2. adopt a process of internal and external consultation and 

engagement as set out in the report;
3. Support the establishment of a working group to agree a new 

performance framework.

20/20 DATA PROTECTION POLICY
(Agenda Item 7)

The Committee considered the revised Data Protection Policy which had 
been updated in light of recent legislative changes.  It was added that a 
privacy notice for councillors and short guide had been drafted which would 
be published towards the end of October.

RESOLVED:

That the Executive be recommended to approve the Council’s revised Data 
Protection Policy.

20/21 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 8)

A meeting of the Council Tax Working Group would be held on 26 
November 2019.

It was requested that the work previously undertaken in respect of the 
impact of the closure of Buxton Court be circulated to members in advance 
of the meeting of Corporate Select Committee on 25 November, where 
representatives of the court service would be in attendance.

RESOLVED:

That the Select Committees’ Work Programmes be noted.

20/22 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 10)

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as set out in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

20/23 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 11)

Page 5



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 30 September 2019

4

RESOLVED:

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2019 be approved 
as a correct record.

20/24 GLOSSOP HALLS UPDATE
(Agenda Item 12)

The Committee considered an update on the scheme to renovate the 
Glossop Town Hall Roof and the results of further survey work on the 
condition of the Market Hall and Municipal Buildings and the required works 
to resolve the issues identified, and made recommendations to the 
Executive.

20/25 LEASE OF LAND AT SERPENTINE DEPOT, BURLINGTON ROAD, 
BUXTON
(Agenda Item 13)

The Committee considered a lease and agreement to lease of the land and 
buildings at Serpentine Depot to Serpentine Community Farm and made 
recommendations to the Executive.

20/26 SURRENDER AND RE-GRANT OF THE BUXTON AND HIGH PEAK GOLF 
CLUB LEASE
(Agenda Item 14)

The Committee considered an agreement between High Peak Borough 
Council and Buxton Golf Club to surrender the existing golf club lease and a 
simultaneous re-grant of a revised area with amended terms and made 
recommendations to the Executive.

20/27 GRANBY ROAD SITE A - DISPOSAL REPORT
(Agenda Item 15)

The Committee considered the disposal of land at Granby Road and made 
recommendations to the Executive.

20/28 WRITE OFF OF IRRECOVERABLE DEBTS
(Agenda Item 16)

The Committee noted the proposed write off of irrecoverable debts.

The meeting concluded at 8.30 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 6



AGENDA ITEM

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Corporate Select Committee

25th November 2019

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A – 2019/20 – Second Quarter (Provisional Outturn) Financial Report
 Appendix B – 2019/20 – Second Quarter Procurement Report 
 Appendix C – 2019/20 – Second Quarter Performance Report

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th September 
(“Second Quarter 2019/20”)

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Select Committee: 

 Note the Second Quarter 2019/20 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after 
considering service activity up to the end of the Second Quarter (i.e. 30th 
September 2019). 

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

TITLE: Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & 
Performance Review 2019/20

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene - Finance 
Vanessa Higgins - Performance 

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

SMDC%2520-%2520Q4%2520(Prov%2520Out)%252011-12%2520App%2520A%2520(11-07-12).doc
SMDC%2520-%2520Q4%2520(Prov%2520Out)%252011-12%2520App%2520B%2520(11-07-12).doc
SMDC%2520-%2520Q4%2520(Prov%2520Out)%252011-12%2520App%2520C%2520(11-07-12).doc


3.3 The position can be summarised as follows:

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The headlines for the Second Quarter are:

Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter Two stage the General Fund provisional outturn for 

2019/20 is a forecast surplus of £252,870.
Efficiency Programme
 The 2019/20 general fund efficiency target of £714,000 (General 

Fund) has already been exceeded with £900,000 of savings 
achieved to date.  

Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account is forecast at the Quarter 2 stage to 

be in surplus (against budget) by £1,467,100. 
Capital Programme
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2019/20 as 

revised is £7.99 million. The outturn is anticipated to be £1.84 million 
underspent at the Q2 stage.

 The HRA Capital Programme for 2019/20 as revised is £4.41 million.  
At the Quarter 2 stage the outturn is expected to be £2.93 million 
which represents a £1.48 million underspend.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30th September 2019 totalled £21 million.
 Council borrowing at 30th September 2019 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest general fund budget is forecast to be in 

surplus by £20,500 with a £35,430 surplus on the HRA
Revenue Collection
 56.79% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 2019, 

compared to 57.10% for the same period last year.
 59.11% of Business Rates was collected by 30th September 2019 

compared with 60.25% for the same period last year.
 At the end of Quarter 2 the value of sundry debt over 60 days old 

was £165,340 which compares to £156,120 at 30th September 2018

Appendix A

Procurement The headlines for the Second Quarter are:
 14 procurement activities were completed 
 At the 30th September 2019, 52% of procurement activity undertaken 

was on the forward plan and the Council paid 96% of its invoices 
within 30 days

Appendix B 

Performance The headlines for the Second Quarter are:
 Targets for 57% of the key performance indicators were met
 Of the 15 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, one is awaiting a 

decision, and the remainder being classified as ‘Green’
 The Council received 74 complaints, 143 comments and 61 

compliments in the Second Quarter. Repeat complaints and response 
times both on track 

Appendix C

Page 8



4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 
subject of this report.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 Detailed analysis is contained within the appendices

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 External Consultation
None

6.8      Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Various background working papers Buxton Town Hall Claire Hazeldene
01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Vanessa Higgins 
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

6.4

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

APPENDIX A

2019/20

Second Quarter 
Financial
Review

Page 11



2

1. Background and Introduction 

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended 
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the 
Second such report for 2019/20.

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2019/20 with particular 
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific 
considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and the funding received by the Council. 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of 
the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste and Fleet services.

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast. 

 Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in 
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.

 General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to 
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.

 HRA Capital Programme (Section 7) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans.

 Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of 
investments and borrowings.

 Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

Page 12



3

2. General Fund Revenue Account

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General 
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service (with staff) 2019/20 
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2019/20

Variance

Use of / 
(Contribution 

to) 
Earmarked 
Reserves

 £ £ £ £
Alliance Leadership Team 58,290 58,290 - -
Audit 10,240 8,240 (2,000) -
ICT 581,980 541,980 (40,000) -
Human Resources 72,480 60,480 (12,000) -
Member Services 195,220 190,920 (4,300) -
Property Services 23,050 240,170 217,120 52,000
Benefits (198,470) (206,970) (8,500) 4,000
Planning Applications (470,930) (495,520) (24,590) 1,030
Building Control 38,270 18,270 (20,000) -
Customer Services 141,890 133,890 (8,000)
Legal Services 30,510 30,510 - -
Electoral Services 81,470 166,470 85,000 115,000
Licensing and Land Charges (316,480) (327,920) (11,440) -
Regeneration 112,560 206,450 93,890 52,850
Communities and Cultural 283,030 296,460 13,430 17,430
Housing Strategy 67,930 36,920 (31,010) (23,000)
Transformation 21,250 23,750 2,500 -
Community Safety and Enforcement 118,080 109,580 (8,500) -
Finance Income & Procurement (26,130) (51,880) (25,750) -
Corporate Finance* 6,461,360 6,127,360 (334,000) -
Waste Collection 2,066,860 2,033,600 (33,260) 2,000
Street Scene (33,520) 130 33,650 12,000
Leisure Services 206,200 219,210 13,010 3,820
Horticulture (809,750) (811,490) (1,740) 840
Environmental Health (31,710) (30,710) 1,000 -
     
Net Total of Services 8,683,680 8,578,190 (105,490) 237,970
     
Net Interest 1,569,370 1,548,870 (20,500)
 10,253,050 10,127,060 (125,990)
     
Funding - external (10,248,040) (10,143,500) 104,540
Funding - reserves contribution to/(from) (5,010) (236,430) (231,420)
     
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (252,870) (252,870)
    
* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance (except for the staff budget of the Carelink service within Housing 
Strategy which for operational reasons are included within the Service).

  ** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

2.2. A revenue budget of £10,253,060 was set for 2019/20.  The table above shows 
how this budget has been allocated to services.

Page 13



4

2.3. The Q2 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2019/20 is 
£10,000,180.  This represents a projected underspend for the year of £252,870.

2.4. There are three service areas with a projected significant overspend (>£50,000):

 Property (£217,120 overspend); the running costs of the Council’s buildings 
are expected to be some £165,000 above budget. Exceptional costs of 
£70,000 relate to remedial works undertaken at the leisure sites and Pavilion 
Gardens as part of the commencement of the new contracts with Parkwood 
Leisure. A combination of the Council’s liability for the business rates on 
vacant industrial properties, loss of income on Glossop Arcade units and 
industrial units is resulting in a forecast £30,000 overspend. The Car Parks 
budget is forecast to be some £14,000 overspent owing to a reduction in 
income being generated by Buxton town centre car parks. On top of this a 
£40,000 overspend on general property maintenance is expected as a result 
of the interim Facilities Management arrangements currently in place. Savings 
across a small number of other budgets are slightly offsetting the above 
overspends.  As set out in Section 2.7 below a £52,000 use of earmarked 
reserves has been identified as a further mitigation of the exceptional budget 
pressures on the Borough’s leisure sites.

 Electoral Services (£85,000 overspend); May 2019 saw the Borough’s local 
elections, at a cost of some £140,000.  The Authority budgets to make annual 
contributions into a reserve earmarked to cover these costs.  As set out in 2.7 
below there will be a net £115,000 drawdown on this reserve in 2019/20.  
Other than the impact of the above election, spend of the service against its 
operational Individual Electoral Registration budget is predicted to be in 
surplus by £30,000 owing to Government funding exceeding expected spend.

 Regeneration (£93,890 overspend); A £40,000 deficit on the Markets budget 
is reflecting pressures on the indoor and outdoor markets at Glossop. A 
£52,850 overspend is also predicted as a result of the Borough incurring 
revenue fees facilitating asset sales in advance of what will be capital receipts.  
As set out in 2.7 below there will be a drawdown of £52,850 of earmarked to 
offset this overspend.  

2.5. There is one service with a projected significant underspend (<£50,000).

 Corporate Finance (£334,000 underspend); savings arising out of the 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme, ahead of expectation, have given 
rise to an in-year underspend. This is generating a £313,000 annual saving 
and is discussed more fully in section 4 (below). A further £21,000 surplus is 
accruing across a number of other corporate budgets.

2.6. The £20,500 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 8. 

2.7. The level of funding anticipated for the year is currently forecast £126,880 above 
that budgeted due to the following:

External Funding (£104,540 reduction):

Business Rates Retention £104,540 net shortfall made up of:
 Additional retention of £288,430:

Page 14



5

o £274,020: After the 100% pilot ended, the 2019/20 budget included a 
conservative estimate of levy payment savings anticipated from the 
Council’s membership of the Derbyshire business rates pool based on 
the previous pool arrangements – this is estimated to be exceeded.

o £14,410: The Business Rates income forecast has reduced since the 
budget was set due to increased Small Business Rate Relief being 
awarded; this has the effect of reducing the ‘levy’ payable on the 
business rates growth. 

 Offset by Reduced retention of £392,970: 
o Section 31 grants due to the authority are anticipated to be lower than at 

budget setting, this relates particularly to Retail discount which was 
estimated on the basis of government criteria for the relief at budget 
setting, but is lower in practice due to State Aid implications. The 
shortfall on the general fund from the reduced grant will be offset over 
time by a larger surplus on the collection fund from the reduced relief 
awarded, which will be distributed in future years.

Use of Reserves £231,420 increase:

At this time, a £231,420 additional net movement out of earmarked reserves is 
predicted, the most significant elements of which are;

 Property Services £52,000 use: this represents the use of funds set aside to 
support remedial works on a number of the Borough’s leisure sites.

 Electoral Services £115,000 use: this is the drawdown to help cover the costs 
of the quadrennial election held in May.  It is the mechanism that spreads the 
cost of the Borough’s elections over the term of a Council.

 Regeneration £52,850 use: New Burdens monies reserved in previous years 
is to be used to fund the in year revenue costs incurred facilitating asset sales.

 Communities and Cultural £17,430 use: New Burdens grant received in 
relation to assets of community value is to be applied to fund survey costs in 
relation to Victoria Hall.

 Housing Strategy £23,000 contribution: Monies received in year to fund 
Homelessness reduction projects are to be earmarked for future use.

 Street Scene £12,000 use: Monies set aside last year to fund a Keep Britain 
Tidy campaign are to be utilised in 2019/20.

Page 15



6

3. Alliance Environmental Services

3.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) is a company created with a vision to 
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High 
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three shareholders: 
High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and Ansa, 
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. This section of the 
report considers the financial performance of the company and contribution to the 
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2019/20.

3.2. Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver 
High Peak Borough Council Waste services. This followed the end of the 
previous contract with Veolia Environmental Services.  Phase 2 began on 1st 
July 2018 to deliver waste services to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
and fleet management services to the Alliance as a whole.

Alliance Environmental Service’s financial performance

3.3. The AES business plan for all services delivered to both Councils included an 
anticipated operating profit of £127,185 in 2019/20. The draft outturn provided at 
the end of the second quarter shows that a profit of £76,652 is anticipated by the 
end of the year; resulting in a shortfall of £50,533 against the budget. The outturn 
includes the forecast risk items payable by the Councils (£423,443); and the 
reimbursement of the planned efficiency target payable by (AES £178,750). 

2019-2020 Budget Draft outturn Variance

£ £ £
Turnover (7,676,264) (7,983,677) (307,413)
Cost of sales 6,873,073 7,194,296 321,223
Gross profit (803,191) (789,381) (13,810)

Administrative & Other 
Expenses 676,006 712,729 36,723

(Profit)/ Loss (127,185) (76,652) 50,533

Impact on the Council’s budgets

3.4. This table shows in more detail the forecast outturn on the AES contract included 
in the General Fund Revenue Account and HRA:

Page 16



7

2019-20 General 
Fund HRA Total

£ £ £
AES Contract budget 2,746,520 103,390 2,849,910
Former vehicle contract hire budget 22,130 - 22,130
Available budget 2,768,650 103,390 2,872,040

Management fee (incl. vehicle premium) 2,824,373 109,804 2,934,177
Forecast in-year risk items 86,589 18,897 105,486
HSE notice of change 27,294 - 27,294
Allocation of AES efficiency (81,624) (3,113) (84,737)
Total management fee payable 2,856,632 125,588 2,982,220
Allocation of Joint Operation Profit (35,002) (1,335) (36,367)
Net total 2,821,630 124,253 2,945,883

Net Variance to budget 52,980 20,863 73,843
Other waste savings (52,980) - (52,980)
Total variance to budget - 20,863 20,863

3.5. In addition to the service budgets for the management fee (contract budget), it 
has been recognised that savings on former contract hire vehicle budgets have 
been achieved as a direct result of the change in vehicle provision upon 
cessation of the SFS contract (the Council’s former provider of contract hire 
vehicles). Therefore, savings of £22,130 have been utilised to support the 
forecast waste vehicle and other fleet ‘risk items’.

3.6. Following the procurement of new waste vehicles, in year savings are being 
forecast relating to the cessation of lease financing costs of hire vehicles. A 
refund against the management fee is anticipated during the year of £55,000. 
The management fee shown in the table above includes this reduction. This is a 
preliminary estimate and will be reviewed at quarter 3.

3.7. The AES Business Plan also includes forecast expenditure recognised initially as 
‘risk items’ which may or may not crystallise into actual costs/ payments or may 
be absorbed into the existing management fee paid on account.  The current 
forecast anticipates that £105,486 (£86,589 general fund, £18,897 HRA) of these 
risk items will crystallise. £67,717 of these risk items relates to fleet costs 
including grounds maintenance equipment which falls under the ‘Fleet’ group. 
The remaining £37,769 relates to contract pressures forecast by AES on 
increasing costs of waste disposal and reducing income on recyclate. These are 
currently forecast by AES on a prudent risk based approach, but the company is 
working to negotiate on prices or offset with savings in other areas. This will be 
reviewed at quarter 3.

3.8. A Health & Safety Executive (HSE) enforcement notice has required a change in 
the operational way in which AES collect bulky items. This was not anticipated at 
the time of budget setting, therefore has resulted in additional costs. These are 
forecast for the year at £27,294, made up of £9,747 for vehicle hire costs and 
£17,547 for agency costs. 

Page 17



8

3.9. The Council’s share of the total AES efficiency to be achieved is £84,737 
(£81,624 general fund, £3,113 HRA). This is repayable to the Council and is 
allocated against the management fee costs.

3.10. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to 
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 
original budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the 
forecast profit at the end of quarter 2 is £36,367 (£35,002 general fund, £1,335 
HRA) and is offset against the management fee costs.

3.11. The remaining overspend resulting from crystallised risk items is further offset by 
savings anticipated in the wider waste service of £52,980 not related to AES, 
which relate largely to improved trade waste income.

Efficiencies

3.12. The total 2019/20 efficiency target relating to AES services is £420,640. This is 
made up of the £178,750 allocated to AES for both Councils and £241,890 to be 
achieved from the retained budgets of both Councils. This will be monitored 
during the year taking into account the timing of phase 3 (the transfer of street 
cleansing and grounds maintenance services).

Page 18



9

4. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

4.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2019/20.

4.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2018) included 
a new four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 
targeting savings of £2.1 million. This was required to balance the forecast budget 
deficit position of £1.7m and also the carry forward of unachieved efficiencies from 
2016/17 of £0.4m.

4.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has the effect of both reducing 
expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a 
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The strategy was 
developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service delivery. It 
is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council to ensure that its 
service spending is determined by the established priorities set out in the 
Corporate Plan.

4.4. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has five areas of focus:

 Major Procurements - The individual projects will focus on Waste Collection & 
Environment Services, Leisure Management and Facilities Management

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising 
the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order to allow for the 
necessary capital investment

 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic growth 
based upon the established Local Plan. 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources on 
income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income

 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas 
of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-statutory services 

4.5. The 2019/20 budget provided for the achievement of £657,000 of new savings in 
year (being £430,000 from the original strategy plus £227,000 of reprofiled 
savings from 2021/22). In addition to this a further £132,000 of savings were 
brought forward as a result of anticipated shortfalls in 2018/19 (assumed as at the 
point the budget was being proposed) – bringing the target to £789,000.  
However, £75,000 of these savings was actually achieved by the end of 2018/19, 
making the savings requirement for 2019/20 a total of £714,000. The major focus 
of the savings programme in 2019/20 being on growth, income generation and 
procurements.

4.6. At the end of Quarter Two, £900,000 has been taken against the overall efficiency 
programme, which includes sizeable savings arising out of the retendering of the 
Council’s contract for insurance services; the AES joint arrangement; the changed 
Pavilion Gardens arrangements; and the procurement of a new leisure 
management contract. The saving from the last of these has been realised 12 
months earlier than anticipated in the original Efficiency Programme (where it was 
expected to be realised in 2020/21). A further £144,000 of growth related savings 
were also delivered at budget-setting time, arising out of New Homes Bonus and 
Business Rates funding forecasts.  

Page 19



10

4.7. Although this gives a healthy look to the 2019/20 savings position and offsets the 
shortfall from 2018/19, there remains a savings target to achieve in 2020/21. It is 
therefore important that the remainder of this year is used to focus on some of the 
income-related savings, included in the early years of the Efficiency Programme, 
which have not been fully realised.

4.8. The Council carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency 
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency 
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000. 
It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains 
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency 
Programme.

Page 20



11

5. Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the 
operation of the Council’s housing stock. 

5.2. The 2019/20 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a 
surplus of £261,660. The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial 
Procedure Rules, authorised the roll forward of £150,000 in unused budgets from 
2018/19 to facilitate delayed capital works to complete a major disabled 
adaptation (£50,000) and to replace the boiler at ALMA Square (£100,000).  
Additionally in August 2019, the Executive approved an increase to the rolling 
three year HRA kitchen programme resulting in a further £171,170 HRA 
contribution to Capital. This brought the 2019/20 budget to a deficit of £59,510.

5.3. Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account at the second 
quarter stage is £13,646,110 with estimated income of £15,053,700. This 
represents a surplus for the year of £1,407,590 (i.e. £1,467,100 below budget).

Housing Revenue Account

2019-20 
Approved 

Budget
Q2 

Changes
2019-20 
Revised 
Budget

2019-20 
Expected 
Outturn

Variance

£ £ £ £ £
INCOME    
Dwellings Rents (14,325,340) - (14,325,340) (14,337,190) (11,850)
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc (622,090) - (622,090) (716,510) (94,420)
Sub-total income (14,947,430) - (14,947,430) (15,053,700) (106,270)
 EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 3,860,920 530,070 4,390,990 4,781,990 391,000
Supervision & Management 3,166,590 (537,840) 2,628,750 2,471,100 (157,650)
Rents, rates, taxes Etc 105,260 7,770 113,030 128,030 15,000
Other Operating Expenditure 736,450 - 736,450 646,200 (90,250)
Depreciation & Impairment 2,099,030 - 2,099,030 2,099,030 -
Interest & Debt Management 2,783,310 - 2,783,310 2,747,880 (35,430)
Contribution to Capital 2,255,380 - 2,255,380 771,880 (1,483,500)
Sub-total expenditure 15,006,940 - 15,006,940 13,646,110 (1,360,830)
 Surplus(-)/Deficit 59,510 - 59,510 (1,407,590) (1,467,100)

5.4. The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local   
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account” 
(HRA).  By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from 
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required 
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by 
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget 
throughout the financial year. The surplus balance predicted by the Council at this 
second quarter stage will be transferred to reserves within the Housing Revenue 
Account.

5.5. There is just one significant (>£50,000) overspend on the HRA:

 Repairs and Maintenance (£391,000) – There are a number of variances 

Page 21



12

contributing to this overspend; the most significant are as follows:
- A further £338,000 spend is required to continue the scheme that 

commenced in 2018/19 to replace loft insulation within a number of council 
dwellings.  This was intended to be funded from HRA Reserves (i.e. 
utilising part of the underspend achieved in 2018/19), however with 
savings forecast elsewhere within the HRA (i.e. reduction in the amount 
required to be contributed to fund capital expenditure) this will be offset by 
savings generated in 2019/20.

-  Spend within the operational property services budget is expected to be 
higher than anticipated in a number of areas including the purchase of 
tools and materials (£65,000) and the increased use of subcontractors 
(£80,000). These spending pressures are compensated by a number of 
smaller underspends across a mix of budget areas thereby resulting in a 
net overspend of £53,000

5.6. There are four significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage.

 Income - Non-Dwelling Rents (94,420) – improvements to void turnarounds 
and increased income from service charges have been responsible for this 
positive variance.

 Supervision and Management (£157,650) – there are numerous small 
underspends across a large number of budget areas contributing to this 
underspend including savings made following the recent insurance tender. 
However, the largest proportion of this variance relates to savings in salary 
costs from vacancies and staff turnover.

 Other Operating Expenditure (£90,250) – this variance is due to the lower 
than expected contribution needed to the bad debts reserve.

 Contribution to Capital (£1,483,500) – This underspend relates to delays in 
commencement and completion of a number of Capital Schemes and is 
reflective of the changes to the Capital programme detailed in Section 7 
below.

Page 22



13

6. General Fund Capital Programme

6.1. This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s General Fund 
Programme.

6.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 30th September 2019. Further detail on a scheme 
by scheme basis is contained in Annex A.

 
2019/20  

Approved 
Budget 

Q2 Changes
2019/20 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2019/20

Expected 
Variance 
2019/20

 £ £ £ £ £

Housing 597,000              -   597,000 27,000 (570,000)
Housing Standards 783,550              -   783,550 556,840 (226,710)
Property Services 2,542,180 186,570 2,728,750 2,384,300 (344,450)
ICT 255,800              -   255,800 135,000 (120,800)
Fleet /CCTV 3,052,960              -   3,052,960 2,517,010 (535,950)
Regeneration 382,780              -   382,780 337,780 (45,000)
Horticulture 289,570 (96,570) 193,000 193,000              -   
Total 7,903,840       90,000 7,993,840 6,150,930 (1,842,910)
      
Planning Obligations              -   33,000 33,000       33,000              -   
External Contributions 873,350 (226,710) 646,640 646,640 -
Capital Receipts 979,320       67,770 1,047,090 1,047,090              -   
Capital Receipts(one for one) 597,000 (570,000) 27,000 27,000              -   
Capital Reserves 75,310 424,690 500,000 500,000              -   
Earmarked Reserves              -   64,450 64,450 64,450              -   
Borrowing 5,378,860 296,800 5,675,660 3,832,750 (1,842,910)
Total 7,903,840 90,000 7,993,840 6,150,930 (1,842,910)

6.3. The 2019/20 General Fund Capital Budget as updated and approved by Members 
on 10th October was set at £7,903,840. During the second quarter budget 
increases of £90,000 have been included; resulting in a revised 2019-20 budget of 
£7,993,840

6.4. The changes made to the capital programme in Quarter 2

 Horticulture Whitfield Play Area - Increased budget £90,000 – Members 
through delegated decision on 10th September 2019, approved a project to 
fully refurbish the site with new play equipment for both toddlers and juniors. 
The project is part funded by section 106 monies; application of a Government 
Grant awarded towards play schemes and the current Play provision capital 
budget.

6.5 There are five significant capital programme variances to report:-

 Housing  (£570,000 underspend) -   The use of one for one housing  capital 
receipts is restricted by time limits imposed on when the receipts have to be 

Page 23



14

spent and also on rules regarding eligibility of projects. There is one payment 
expected in this year which meets the criteria which is retention owing of 
£27,000 against an affordable housing project at Thomas Field Brown Edge. 
The Council has funded the project in return for nomination rights.  

 Housing Standards (£226,710 underspend) - the level of Disabled Facilities 
Grant (DFGs) approvals in 2019-20 is expected to be lower than forecast.  
The payment of these mandatory grants is currently  met from funding the 
Borough receives annually through the Better Care Fund; the above  change 
brings the balance of  unallocated funding to £376,929 

 Property (£344,450 underspend) - A number of projects have been re-
profiled into future years and some, including car park resurfacing, have been 
brought forward into the current year following the on-going review and 
prioritisation of works contained within the Asset Management Plan. 

 ICT (£120,800 underspend) – the anticipated underspend is due to a number 
of changes made to requirements for new and upgrades to existing  ICT 
systems.  The underspend will be carried forward into 2020/21 to meet 
commitments which primarily relate to the implementation of a new system to 
aid waste collection processes and the migration of the cash receipting 
system.

 Fleet Management (£535,950 underspend) - following transfer of the waste 
collection service to Alliance Environmental Services (AES), new fleet 
management arrangements are in place, with vehicles now directly purchased 
by the Council. The underspend reflects the revised timing of acquisitions of 
fleet vehicles which will take place over the next four years 

6.6 The significant changes to the funding requirements are set out below:-

 Disabled Facilities Grants – as reported above the spend and consequently the 
application of external contributions is expected to be £226,710 lower than 
budgeted

 Capital receipts reserves and planning obligations have been increased by a 
net £19,910 to reflect the latest anticipated levels of funding available; 

 As a consequence of the above and the revised timing of capital spend, the 
borrowing requirement is anticipated to be £1,842,910 lower than the revised 
borrowing budget.

 

Page 24



15

7.  Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

7.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA 
capital spending.

7.2. The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme at 
30th September 2019. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is contained 
in Annex B.

Scheme
2019-20 

Approved 
Budget

Q2 Changes
2019-20 
Revised 
Budget

2019/20 
Expected 
Outturn

2019/20 
Variance

 £ £ £ £ £

Asset Management Works 3,777,910 - 3,777,910 2,536,910 (1,241,000)
Repairs Team Capital Works 295,000 - 295,000 295,000 -
Commissioning Fees 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
Vehicle Purchasing 242,500 - 242,500 0 (242,500)

4,415,410 - 4,415,410 2,931,910 (1,483,500)
Funding:
Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030 - 2,099,030 2,099,030 -
Capital Receipts Applied 61,000 - 61,000 61,000 -
HRA Contribution 2,255,380 - 2,255,380 771,880 (1,483,500)

4,415,410 - 4,415,410 2,931,910 (1,483,500)
 

7.3. The 2019/20 HRA Capital budget of £4,094,240 was approved by members in 
February 2019 as part of the MTFP.

7.4. The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, 
authorised the roll forward of £150,000 in unused budgets from 2018/19 to 
facilitate delayed capital works to complete a major disabled adaptation (£50,000) 
and to replace the boiler at Alma Square (£100,000).  Further to this, in August 
2019 the Executive approved an increase to the three year kitchen programme 
budget resulting in an additional £171,170 being added to the 19/20 HRA Capital 
programme. This brings the total HRA Capital Programme to £4,415,410.

7.5. During the second quarter, £1,002,007 has been incurred on HRA Capital 
Schemes principally on central heating boiler replacements, electrical works and 
aids and adaptation schemes.

  
7.6. Much of the HRA spend is scheduled to commence in late autumn, however there 

are four significant capital variance to note at this stage relating to asset 
management works:

 Window Replacement (£600,000) – Although this scheme has been recently 
tendered, there has been little interest in the contract and no responses to the 
tender process.  A further procurement exercise is underway; tenders have 
been returned and are currently being evaluated meaning that the start date 
for this particular project is likely to be much later than expected.  Any 
underspend this year will be re-profiled into 2020/21 and updated within the 

Page 25



16

next Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 Door Replacement (£221,000) – This scheme was also part of the Window 

Replacement tender and has suffered the same delay.  Underspends from this 
year will also be re-profiled into 2020/21 and updated within the Medium Term 
Financial Plan

 Roofing and External Work (£220,000) – The next phase of roofing works 
covering predominantly Glossop and New Mills was due to commence in late 
Autumn, however due to resource pressures, the procurement process has 
been put back until after the winter months. Although some roofing work may 
commence in the spring, weather permitting, the majority of spend has been 
re-profiled into 2020/21 and updated within the next Medium Term Financial 
Plan.

 Vehicle Purchases (£242,500) – This underspend relates to the provision of 
new vehicles for the repairs Team; however the service is currently under 
review and therefore this spend has been re-profiled into 2020/21 and updated 
within the Medium Term Financial Plan.

7.7. Capital funding expected to be applied during 2019/20 is lower than forecast due 
to the variances noted above.

Page 26



17

8. Treasury Management

8.1. This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high 
level summary as the Audit and Regulatory Committee receives detailed 
operational updates on Treasury Management.

Investments

8.2. Cash Investments held on the 30th September 2019 totalled £21.0 million. The 
average level of funds available for investment up to the end of the quarter totalled 
£17.9 million and £73,740 interest was earned.

8.3. The Council has budgeted to receive £225,260 in investment income in 2019/20. 
A shortfall of £47,000 is anticipated against this budget due to the continuation of 
internal borrowing which reduces the levels of funds available for investment and 
lower interest rates than forecast.

8.4. The loan to the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust has now been fully drawn to the 
value of £250,000: drawdowns in quarter 1 were £60,000 on 25th April and 
£50,000 on 25th May. Interest is charged at 6% which amounts to £14,360 during 
2019/20. This was not anticipated in the budget, therefore will partially offset the 
interest income shortfall above.

Borrowing

8.5. Outstanding borrowing at 30th September 2019 totalled £66.8 million. The 
Council’s general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,794,630 and £1,783,310 
respectively in interest charges and other financing costs in 2019/20. This was 
based on existing external debt and new external debt to fund the borrowing 
requirements arising from general fund capital programmes.

8.6. No ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity has occurred by the end of quarter 2, 
therefore the budget is forecast to be £88,570 underspent overall: split £53,140 to 
the general fund and £35,430 to the HRA.

Page 27



18

9. Revenue Collection

9.1. The collection rate outturn for Quarter 2 2019/20 was as follows:

 Council Tax – 56.79% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 2019, 
compared to 57.10% for the same period last year.

 Business Rates – 59.11% of Business Rates was collected by 30th September 
2019, compared with 60.25% for the same period last year. 1.23% of this year-
on-year shortfall in performance is attributed to variations on payment plans of 
some large hereditaments and are not anticipated to continue to create a 
shortfall by year end. 

 Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of 
Quarter 2 was £165,340 which compares with £156,120 at 30th September 
2018.  

Page 28



19

ANNEX A    

                   General Fund Capital Programme Update – 30th September 2019

Scheme
2019/20  

Approved 
Budget 

Q2 
Changes

2019/20 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2019/20

Expected 
Variance 
2019/20

 £ £ £ £ £

Housing & Housing Standards      
Affordable Housing Project 597,000             -   597,000 27,000 (570,000)
Disabled Facilities Grants 715,820             -   715,820 489,110 (226,710)
Landlord Accreditation Grant Scheme 67,730             -   67,730 67,730              -   
 1,380,550             -   1,380,550 583,840 (796,710)
Property Services      
Asset Management Programme 2,542,180 186,570 2,728,750 2,384,300 (344,450)
 2,542,180 186,570 2,728,750 2,384,300 (344,450)
ICT 255,800             -   255,800 135,000 (120,800)
 255,800             -   255,800 135,000 (120,800)
Fleet Management      
Vehicle Acquisition  3,002,960             -   3,002,960 2,467,010 (535,950)
CCTV       50,000             -   50,000 50,000              -   
  3,052,960             -    3,052,960  2,517,010 (535,950)
Regeneration      
Heritage Regeneration Grants 45,000             -   45,000             -   (45,000)
Buxton Crescent & Spa 337,780             -   337,780 337,780              -   
 382,780             -   382,780 337,780 (45,000)
Horticulture      
Glossop Cemetery Extension 186,570 (186,570)             -               -                -   
Play Facilities 103,000 90,000 193,000 193,000              -   
 289,570     (96,570) 193,000 193,000              -   
      
Total General Fund 7,903,840       90,000 7,993,840 6,150,930 (1,842,910)

Page 29



20

ANNEX B

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update - 30th September 2019

Scheme

Approved 
Budget 
2019/20

Q2 
Changes

2019/20 
Revised 
Budget

2019/20 
Expected 
Outturn 

Over / 
(Under) 
Spend

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS: £ £ £ £ £
Roofing & External Works 495,000 - 495,000 75,000 (420,000)
Kitchens 554,170 - 554,170 554,170 -
Bathrooms 266,000 - 266,000 266,000 -
Central Heating 276,500 - 276,500 276,500 -
Electrical Works 424,000 - 424,000 424,000 -
Aids & Adaptations 295,000 - 295,000 305,500 10,500
Aids & Adaptations (Sherwood Road) 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 -
Aids & Adaptations (Lyne Avenue) 36,240 - 36,240 36,240 -
Structural Works (Various) 150,000 116,000 266,000 261,500 (4,500)
Lift Replacements 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
ALMA Square – Boiler Replacement 100,000 - 100,000 94,000 (6,000)
Works to Communal Areas 150,000 (116,000) 34,000 34,000 -
Window Replacement Programme 660,000 - 660,000 60,000 (600,000)
Door Replacement Programme 221,000 - 221,000 - (221,000)
 3,777,910 - 3,777,910 2,536,910 (1,241,000)
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Void Rewires 35,000 35,000 70,000 70,000 -
Void Kitchens  200,000 (45,000) 155,000 155,000 -
Void Bathrooms  60,000 10,000 70,000 70,000 -
 295,000 - 295,000 295,000 -
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning Costs 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
VEHICLE PURCHASING
Vehicle Purchases 242,500 - 242,500 - (242,500)
 242,500 - 242,500 - (242,500)
 
TOTAL SPEND 4,415,410 - 4,415,410 2,931,910 (1,483,500)

Page 30



APPENDIX B

2019/20

    Second Quarter
    Procurement 

    Review

Page 31



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was 
approved by Full Council n February 2017. 

1.2 The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the 
Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  The key actions in in 
the strategy included:-

 Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of 
contracts.

 Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of excellence 
to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils

 Revising Procurement Procedure Rules to support transparency, timeliness 
of contract award and greater control – these have now been updated

 Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as 
appropriate

 Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
 Implementation of e-tendering
 Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement 

opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

1.4 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for 
presentation during 2019/20. 

Page 32



2. Second Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function for the Second quarter July 
2019 to September 2019 is summarised below:

Second Quarter  
High Value 

(> £181,000)

Low Value

 (< £181,000)
Total

HPBC Only - 10 10
JOINT (HP/SM) 1 3 4
TOTAL 1 13 14

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 14 procurement exercises completed during 
Quarter two.  

2.3 Procurement savings will continue to be monitored throughout the year and any 
savings identified will be offset against the efficiency programme.  

 

Page 33



3. 2019/20 Procurement Forward Plan 

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting 
in 2019/20.

2019/20
Activity

High Value 
(> £181,000k)

 Low Value
 (< £181,000k) Total

HPBC 14 54 68
JOINT (HP/SM) 6 42 48
TOTAL 20 96 116

In addition to the above, there are 62 listed entries brought forward from previous 
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined). 

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 
delivery in 2019/20 includes:-

 CCTV Equipment, Maintenance and Monitoring Arrangements
 Construction Materials Supplies – Direct Services
 HRA Capital Works: Windows & Doors, Central Heating, Roofing, Bathroom 

programmes 
 Banking Services Contract (currently under a value for money review)
 IT Desktop Support Contract

Page 34



4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity 
and the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the second quarter is highlighted below:-

Performance Indicator Target Performance at 
30th Sept 2019

% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 72% 52%

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget

85% 83%

% of invoices paid within 30 
days 96% 96%

Performance Indicators – targets off track

4.3 % of Alliance Procurement Activity on Forward Plan
There have been a number of single source exemptions to complete reactive or 
urgent works / services during Q2, which could not have been included  on the 
procurement forward plan at the last service reviews.  During Q3 scheduled 
reviews will be undertaken with services to monitor current planned activity and 
future requirements (including 20/21 and 21/22).  The forward plan will also be 
reviewed by Finance Business Partners after service reviews are completed.

4.4 Annual contract spend as % of gross expenditure budget
The Procurement team have been working closely with Direct Services to capture 
current sub contracting activity to work towards formalising contract arrangements 
for these larger spend areas. 
A current programme of Electrical and Joinery (including Glazing) framework 
contracts have been let and will result in higher on contract spend activity in Q3 as 
the contracts start.  The Procurement Team will continue to support services to 
formalise their contracting arrangements with external market, during the 
remainder of 19/20 to achieve target.

Page 35



ANNEX A
Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC

Contract Title Brief contract 
description

Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award Detail Term / 
Duration

 Total 
Contract 
Value £    

Earth River Bank 
Reinstatement and 
Wall repair –
84/86 Buxton Rd 
Whaley Bridge

Repair required to 
retaining wall and 
riverbank at Buxton Road 
Whaley Bridge

One Off
(Works)

Assets Open 
Tender

Derbyshire 
Geotechnical 
Ltd

12 wks 123,649

External 
Professional - 
Planning

Advocacy and Advice on 
Planning Appeal site

One Off Legal RFQ Kings 
Chambers 
Giles Cannock 
QC

n/a 29,600

10 Meadow Lane 
Structural Works

Structural and Associated 
works to Council property 

One Off 
(Works)

Assets Open 
Tender

Roy Wright & 
Co Ltd

6 - 8 
wks

26,054

Empty Homes 
Review – External 
Consultancy

Support to maximise new 
homes bonus funding by 
completing a full review 
of every single long term 
empty property

One Off Finance Framework Liberata Uk 
Ltd T/A 
Capacity Grid

2 yrs 25,000

Replacement Lift 
Installation [Council 
Property]

Replacement of obsolete 
lift in domestic Council 
property – Aid / 
Adaptation

One Off
(supply / 
install)

Assets Single 
Source

OTIS Ltd n/a 19,289

Supply of Christmas 
Trees

Purchase of Christmas 
Trees for town centres

One Off
(Supply)

Operational 
Services - 
Grounds

Contract 
variation

Joseph 
Noblett

n/a 
(supply)

17,984

Rural Crime 
Prevention

Smart Water security 
packs

One Off Communities Single 
Source

Smart Water 
Technologies

n/a
(supply)

13,994

New furniture at 
Cromford Court

Purchase of furniture at 
Cromford Court, Whaley 
Bridge for Communal 
area

One Off
(Supply)

Housing 
Tenancy 
Services

RFQ Care Chair n/a 
(supply)

8,298

Grave Digging 
Services HPBC 
(Interim 19/20)

Provision of Grave 
digging services for High 
Peak – Interim contract 
arrangement

Recurring Operational 
Services - 
Grounds

RFQ Berresford 
Contracting 
Ltd

3 
months

3,500

Chapel-en-le-Frith 
Business Park  
Masterplan update 
2019

External Consultancy One Off Regeneration N/A Exercise Suspended

Page 36



Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award 
Detail 

Term 
(years)

 Total 
Contract 
Value £

Public Realm 
CCTV Upgrades 
and 
Maintenance 
Contract

Combined contract for 
upgrades to Control Room 
Equipment and 
infrastructure, Includes 
support and maintenance  
element for HP and SM.  

Recurring Communities OPEN Tender 
(OJEU 
Supplies / 
Services)

OpenView 
Security 
Solutions 
Ltd

5 yrs 389,782

SMDC = 
257,603

HPBC = 
132,179

Playground 
Equipment 
Spare and 
replacement 
parts 
requirements

Supply of spare equipment 
and replacement items to 
repair any damages at 
various playgrounds across 
HP and SM areas

Recurring Operational 
Services – 
Leisure 

Open Tender GB Sport & 
Leisure

1 
(+2yrs)

21,000
(est. 50% 

per 
Authority)

Intranet Housing 
and Licence 
Support 

Current intranet system 
ongoing hosting and support 
services (contract novated)

Recurring Transformation Single Source Upbeat 3 5,105
(50% per 
Authority)

DCP Online 
Subscription 
Renewal

Access to development 
control manual, to ensure 
high quality development 
control decisions

Recurring Development 
Control

n/a – 
subscription 
to online 
legislation

DCP 
Online 
Renewals

1 3,525
(50% per 
Authority)

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: April to September 2019 (Q2)

P
age 39



57%
43%

On Track Off Track
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%                       

29%

52%

19%

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%         

High Peak Q2 Summary 

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to September 2019 in relation to 
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects (NB the revised Corporate Plan is now in place and 
will be reflected in the performance framework from Q3). The report also provides an overview of the results from the Council’s customer 
feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints, and the level of comments and compliments.      

Performance Overview 

There are 121 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’ and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at High Peak (10 less than last year). The chart below 
shows the results for the first half of the year and reveals an 8% dip on Q2 compared to September 2018. The actions being taken to address 
the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the previous Corporate 
Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these actions / projects. 

  

Customer Feedback Overview 

The number of complaints received during the first half of 2019/20 is 38% lower than this point last year, with just 74 complaints. Both repeat 
complaints and responding to complaints are on track. This report includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and any 
repeat issues.     

    

Off Track

In danger of going off Track

On Track

Not yet started / decision 
awaited

Complete / Closed

P
age 40



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 1: September Results 
2019/20

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 1 : September 
Trends 2019/20

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work 

High Peak has more measures ‘off track’ than ‘on track’ under this Aim. The number of households in temporary accommodation is 25 
compared to a target of 15; however, the use of this type of accommodation is supporting the council’s approach to preventing homelessness 
with 97% of cases resolved.            

Celebrating Success: 

At the end of September 2019 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 homelessness prevention

P
age 41



Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – September
Continue to influence the provision 
of accessible health and social care 
services through the Council’s 
Scrutiny work programme 

The Community Select Committee met on 19th June and members received a general overview of 
scrutiny. No further updates at present.

 Implement the Council’s new sport 
and physical activity strategy and 
carry out research into nil cost 
facility provision being achieved by 
other councils; in order to achieve 
improved health and value for 
money outcomes   
 

A meeting occurred with Sport England in early September at which our future plans were 
discussed. They have confirmed they will support us to develop a consultancy brief to help us 
identify plans for the future of key facilities. Further meetings are being scheduled for October to 
include a tour of our sites and a meeting with key colleagues across relevant service areas.

Complete the review of the CCTV 
system and implement the agreed 
recommendations

Contracts have been awarded; the next stage is to obtain a timeline for the works from our 
successful bidder.

P
age 42



On Track Off Track
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

HP Aim 2: September Results 
2019/20

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

HP Aim 2: September 
Trends 2019/20

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

High Peak has dropped by 4% this month (one PI) and now has 11 ‘off track’ measures, largely due to housing stock related PIs (rent loss, job 
rates, repairs, re-let times) but also channel shift interactions, levels of sickness absence and sundry debt. 

   

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of September 2019 the following PIs outstripped their target:

 twitter and Facebook followers
 complaint handling and repeat issues
 internal audit recommendations implemented
 IT systems and network availability

 

P
age 43



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – September
Deliver the Channel 
Shift Programme

The Digital Strategy is currently under review. We are awaiting a new contact at SOCITM 
E billing: Civica OPEN Access extended whilst ongoing work is taking place with IEG4. A meeting took place in 
August and work is ongoing.
IEG4 portal- project board to be resurrected. Process review to be carried out re Revs & Bens.
Environmental reporting app- this was looked at as part of the CGI review. To be included in the new digital 
programme going forward, work to be prioritized. 

Provide advice and 
support for 
residents affected 
by the rollout of 
Universal Credit  

Phase 2: Universal Credit roll out (rents).

A project stream is being established to look at local Council tax reduction processes and the options for this 
going forward. A forecasting tool to analyse and cost out a banded scheme has been purchased and 
modelling for a suitable scheme is currently underway.

Continue to embed 
good information 
management 
practices through 
the ASSURED 
framework

The GDPR action plan, which now includes the recent audit actions, is on track. Progress is monitored 
through the Information Governance Group. 
The online GDPR training package has been rolled out across the organisation, further in depth training will 
be arranged for relevant staff. 
Information Asset Registers have been reviewed and re-issued to Managers to outline gaps and 
inconsistencies, along with a Managers checklist formulated by the DPO.  A programme of challenge 
sessions have been compiled and will commence in October where managers will be invited to attend 
Information Governance Group to review their registers. 
Work is ongoing with suppliers to ensure adequate GDPR clauses are in place.

Develop and 
implement a plan to 
identify new and 
innovative ways of 
generating income

Fees and charges- Next review for 2019/20 budget setting/MTFP. Cash up against efficiency target to be 
undertaken during 2019/20.
Advertising/Sponsorship - A new policy is to be written and adopted. The project team has been identified; 
the first meeting took place In Sept 2019. 
Annual Council Tax review to inform New Homes Bonus allocation is ongoing, with letters sent to empty 
property owners and property inspections pending. Initial feedback from period 2-31.8.19; 50% return rate, 
with 65 HP occupied properties identified.  After this exercise, a questionnaire survey shall be sent to empty 
property owners starting with High Peak. Analysis of responses will identify why properties remain empty 
and what action/ assistance would help to effectively bring properties back into use.

P
age 44



Priority Action Status Commentary – September

Refresh and 
implement the 
Asset Management 
Plan, including a 
review of public 
estate, and ensure 
adequate facilities 
management 
arrangements are in 
place

Facilities Management: An agreement to extend has been made with DCC with 3 months notice. The Asset 
Management Plan is pending the implementation of the new Asset Management system. Head of Assets is 
producing a report for the Executive Director and is working through a business case as the next stage.

P
age 45



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
HP Aim 3: September Results 

2019/20 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
HP Aim 3: September Trends 2019/20

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration 

The Council has a perfect record on planning processing targets with all targets currently on track. The two ‘off track’ measures relate to the 
Pavilion Gardens complex with both footfall and Trip Advisor satisfaction ratings below target.           

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of September 2019 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time
 Major and minor developments allowed on appeal

P
age 46



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary - September
Together with partners work 
for the delivery of the Buxton 
Crescent development

The project Board has now been established and projects prioritised. The invitation to tender for 
the development branding toolkit for Buxton is now complete. This will see the development of a 
creative brand, logo and strap line reflecting the vision set out in the Buxton Visitor Economy 
Strategy. The property will be handed over to the Crescent Trust once completed- the lease has 
been drafted. Consultants have been appointed to deliver the branding toolkit. A stakeholder 
workshop began in August- awaiting update.

Support the development of 
Glossop Halls

Completion of the Town Hall roof has been delayed - this is being challenged by the project team. 
The latest completion date is November 2019. The clock has been fixed and was working but has 
stopped whilst a new power cable is being installed to replace the temporary supply.
The use of Victoria Hall continues with the friends of Victoria Hall successfully supporting the first 
performance there.
Next phase is the Market Hall Roof, a meeting was held at the end of September with Councillors.
  

Implement the accelerated 
housing delivery programme

Discussions with all relevant land owners and developers as well as DCC and Homes England are 
on-going: 
Glossop package: Glossop and Gamesley OPE funding confirmed. The project board has been set 
up.
Buxton package: Conditions of the HIF grant offer are being considered by legal. A report is being 
prepared recommending a re-grant of the Golf Club lease. The first stage of the consultation on 
the roundabout has now closed; a feedback report is being prepared by DCC. A focus meeting will 
be required for the roundabout.
Granby Road- Report prepared recommending disposal of Granby Road A for consideration in 
October. First draft of soft marketing test received and is being considered. A proposed disposal 
plan is being prepared including timescales, phases, costs and additional resources required. 

P
age 47



Priority Action Status Commentary - September
HP - Implement the 
accelerated business growth 
and employment programme

Wrens Nest: The temporary hold on property expansion placed by Kingspan has now been lifted 
and they are now ready to resume negotiations. The optimum scheme on the remainder of the 
Wrens nest site is being costed before a proposal is put to the Borough Council. The company 
have confirmed their continued willingness to engage with agents representing neighbouring 
residential schemes to consider enabling access to these sites as part of their scheme. 

Goyt Bridge: S106 expires March 2019. A report will be written regarding the transfer of land, the 
project will then be closed.
 
Chapel Masterplan: A meeting will be held at the beginning of October with Derbyshire Police and 
Fire Service to consider potential use of the site as part of delivering a wider scheme for a High 
Peak northern hub Police Station 

Buxton Station:  Planning applications for the health hub and McCarthy & Stone development 
have been approved. Project managers have been appointed via the OPE process. DCHS is 
awaiting the outcome of the bid to STP programme.

P
age 48



On Track Off Track
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

HP Aim 4: September Results 
2019/20 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 4 : September Trends 
2019/20

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

Aim four is a high performing area for the council with instances of fly tipping the only ‘off track’ measure. High Peak’s residual waste tonnage 
estimates have been challenged with the County Council and are expected to be lower than currently recorded in time for Q3 and have 
therefore been marked as on track on this occasion.  

 

   

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of September 2019 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 
 % household waste sent for recycling (estimated)
 missed bins

 

P
age 49



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – September
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint 
venture company, to deliver waste, 
streets and ground maintenance services 
on behalf of the Council in order to 
achieve improved performance and value 
for money outcomes.

Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) go live date is still to be confirmed but is 
expected to be Spring 2020. An internal AES project board meeting took place at the 
end of September.

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan

 

An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy have been completed and forms part 
of a wider Developer Contributions SPD (Supplementary Planning Document). The 
intention is to contract this work out to a consultant and the draft specification is now 
being developed. The tender will be advertised in January 2019 with a view to an 
appointment being made in February. Following consultation, the SPD should be 
adopted by the end of 2019.

Commence the preparatory work needed 
to facilitate the expansion of Glossop 
Cemetery in 2019/20

Actions and outputs for the next stage: Redesign the whole of the area to assess if it 
would financially be more economical to install drainage to the whole site to future 
proof it for future development. This may need a deep drainage system as well as a 
water treatment plant.

P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



Areas for Improvement: September 2019 

Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

Result 
September 

2019  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Assistant Chief 
Executive

Time taken to process new 
housing benefit claims

18 days 21.79 days

Time taken to process 
change of circumstances

7 days 15.38 days

New Claims: Performance has significantly 
improved over the last 2 months.  A reviewed 
triage system was introduced mid-September to 
ensure this trend continues. HP has a number of 
complex supported housing cases which can cause 
issues in terms of timely production of information 
from applicants

Change of Circs: Automation software that has 
been introduced coupled with a reduction in staff 
absences will enable the off track figures to reduce

Number of household in 
temporary accommodation

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing stock that meets 

the needs of tenants

15 25 The temporary accommodation figures are off 
target however this is supporting our performance 
in preventing/relieving homelessness which is 
currently running at 97.3% of cases being resolved 
prior to main duty stage being reached.

a) Number of RTB 
transactions (applications) 
& b) % completed within 

statutory timescales (RTB2)

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing stock that meets 

the needs of tenants

Head of Legal and 
Elections

100% a)31 b) 
97%

30 out of 31 applications processed within 
timescales

P
age 53



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

Result 
September 

2019  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Average time from request 
to repair (DLO)

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets

Head of Direct 
Services

13 days 14.33 days This PI is slightly weaker than last month with a 
continuing trend of large numbers of P4 jobs. Over 
42% of all jobs completed during September had 
an average completion time of 28 days. The 
average time to complete all jobs is below target, 
e.g.; P1 jobs - Target 1 day vs Actual 0.12 days; P2 
Jobs - Target 7 days vs Actual 3.15 days. It is 
expected that this PI will improve slightly over the 
coming months.

NEW: Average number of 
jobs completed per 
operative per day

Head of Direct 
Services

4.7 4.52 This Pi is slightly weaker that last month due to a 
larger proportion of jobs taking longer to complete 
e.g. P4 jobs which can take up to 1 or 2 days to 
complete vs P1 & P2 jobs which tend to be 
completed in less than 4 hours.

Rent collected

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets

Head of Finance 98.5% 94.31% The September PI indicator reflects 
underperformance of 0.48% against last year; 
however, we remain confident that we can meet 
the year end target.  We are continuing to monitor 
performance, which is difficult with the DWP 
payment schedule (relating to UC claimants with 
managed payments).  We are currently reviewing 
the DWP schedules and trying to ascertain how 
many week in arrears the managed payments are, 
which then distort the figures.  We are also trying 
to understand any impact that monthly payers 
have on the performance calculation.

P
age 54



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

Result 
September 

2019  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

% Rent loss due to vacant 
stock

Assistant Chief 
Executive

0.86% 0.89% Current Rent loss due to vacant stock - 
£166,059.27
£122,990.08 of this figure is for properties in 
Marian Ct and  Church View
£20,782.08 of this figure is for Padfield Main Road 
which has been re-let of 2.10.19

Average time taken to re-let 
Council homes

Assistant Chief 
Executive

25 days 30.2 days The average turnaround time for a minor void 
excluding hard to let is 8.5 days. The off track 
margin has reduced by 1.5 days in a month. This 
month we relet a major void at 91 days.  This 
property required adaptations for the new tenant 
who uses a wheelchair.  The adaptations include 
widening doors, ramps, new kitchen and rewire.  
We also let a bedsit over target at 28 days.  All 
other voids let this month were under target.  

FOI requests:% responded 
to within statutory time 

frame 

Head of Legal and 
Elections

95% 80.76% We are reviewing response times with service 
areas. We will also be reminding Managers of their 
responsibility to meet the guidelines around FOI 
response times.

No. / % of interactions: a) 
phone b) face to face c) web

Aim 2: Easily available 
services provided right 

first time

Assistant Chief 
Executive

a)37% b)23%             
c)40%

a)  40%
b)  25%
c)  35%

Additional online forms introduced to allow 
customers to self serve. Overall contact to the 
council has reduced by a further 10% as we get it 
right first time and reduce the avoidable contacts.

P
age 55



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

Result 
September 

2019  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Use of contracts register: 
annual contract spend as a 

% of gross expenditure 
budget 

2% 
improvement 

to 2018/19

83% A number of on-contract agreements ceased by 
HPBC as the contracting Authority in Qtr. 1 which 
had been previously included as on contract 
expenditure.  The Pavilion Gardens outsourcing 
has resulted in a reduction of large expenditure 
measured against on contract arrangements.  The 
forward plan details a pipeline of activity to 
address the current category areas identified as off 
contract arrangements which will be reviewed 
during 19/20. 

Collection rates: Sundry 
Debt (value of SD over 60 

days)

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Head of Finance 

5% reduction 5.84% 
increase on 

Q2 18-19

Invoice for almost £12,000 outstanding yet to be 
paid by Veolia.  Payment is in process & should be 
received by us within the next week

Ave days sickness per FTE 
(include short & long term 

absence per FTE)

Aim 2: 
A high performing and 

well motivated workforce

Head of OD & 
Transformation

9 days 5.67 days Ave days sickness per FTE: 

Short term 1.30 days / long term 4.37 days. 

There have been 21 cases of long term sickness 
this year equating to 1019 FTE days. 592 of these 
days relate to direct services operational staff.  
Out of the 21 cases, 5 are still ongoing and are 
being managed in line with the long term sickness 
procedure.

Pavilion Gardens : Trip 
Advisor rating (% 
good/excellent)

Aim 3: 
Flourishing town centres 

that support the local 
economy

Head of Service 
Commissioning

93.75% 88.66% 27 reviews were made in July and 25 reviews in 
August. September results have not yet been 
received from our contractor and so the result is 
estimated. Reports from Parkwood suggest visitors 
are moving to other forms of social media to 
record reviews. Of the 97 reviews received to date 
in 2019-20, only 3 were rated poor or terrible (3% 
of reviews received).

P
age 56



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2019/20

Result 
September 

2019  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Pavilion Gardens: footfall Aim 3: 
Flourishing town centres 

that support the local 
economy

Head of Service 
Commissioning

Q2 220,000 193,689 Footfall in September has not yet been provided 
by our contractor so the result is estimated. July 
and August footfall was 48,685 lower than for the 
same period last year. Unfortunately the weather 
this summer will have affected footfall when 
comparing to the heatwave of 2018. Parkwood 
have instigated new indoor offers to help mitigate 
footfall losses and will continue to explore these 
over winter months also.

Number of fly tipping 
incidents collected by the 
Council (exc sec 46 waste) 

Aim 4: Provision of high 
quality public amenities, 

clean streets and 
environmental health 

Head of Service 
Commissioning

199 120 32 instances of fly tipping were cleared this month.

Joint Alliance Measures

% of Procurement activity 
on forward plan (Joint 

Alliance Measure)

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Head of Finance 72% 52% There have been a number of single source 
exemptions to complete reactive or urgent works / 
services during Q2, which could not be included on 
the procurement forward plan at the last service 
review.  During Q3, scheduled reviews will be 
undertaken with Services to monitor current 
planned activity and future requirements 
(including 20/21 and 21/22).  The forward plan will 
also be reviewed by Finance Business Partners 
after Service reviews are completed.

 

 For a full list of all performance measures and the Q2 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link

P
age 57

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/high_peak_q2_2019-20.pdf
https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/high_peak_q2_2019-20.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 CORPORATE
Chairman: Councillor Ashton

Vice Chairman: Stone
Councillor Lead Officer: A Stokes

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Medium Term Financial Plan Update A Stokes
Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review  2019/2020

C Hazledene / 
V Higgins

Corporate Plan communication and engagement and 
approach to the new performance framework

V Higgins

Contract Award report - Supply and Installation of 
Windows and Doors Council Housing – fixed term contract 
(Part 2)

P Chadwick

Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa Project – Alterations to 
lease and support for Buxton Heritage Trust

D Larner

Queens Court Roofing Works (Part 2) P Chadwick
Pay and Display machine upgrade (Part 2) K Webster
Select Committee Work Programme

25-Nov-19

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review  2019/2020

C Hazledene / 
V Higgins

HM Courts and Tribunal Service T Calleia
Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21  A Stokes
Land Disposal – Hogshaws (Part 2) S Porru / K 

Webster
Hague Bar depot disposal (Part 2) N Ravenscroft
Howard Town House disposal (Part 2) M Hooson

10-Feb-20

Facilities Management contract option appraisal (Part 2) K Webster

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 9



 CORPORATE
Review of Call Centre Operation K Lomas/M 

Walker
Peer Review M Walker
Select Committee Work Programme

Select Committee Work Programme30-Mar-20

Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
Performance Framework 2020/21 and Annual Report 
2019/20
Select Committee Work Programme

Jun-20

Fourth Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review 2019/20
Select Committee Work Programme

Jul-20

First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review  2020/2021

C Hazledene / 
V Higgins

Select Committee Work Programme

Sep-20

Advertising/Sponsorship Policy
Transfer of Building Control B Haywood

To add in

P
age 60



COMMUNITY
Chairman: Councillor Quinn

Vice Chairman: Councillor Sizeland
Lead Officer: M Trillo

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Accessible Buxton (presentation) Sarah Jowett
Parkwood Update (including Pavilion Gardens 
Concession Update)

Parkwood 

Leisure Centre Options Rob Wilkes/N Kemp
AQMA Action Plan for Tintwistle Alicia Paterson
Food Enforcement Plan Alicia Paterson
Declaration of an Air Quality Management Area on part of 
the A57, Dinting Vale, Glossop

Alicia Paterson 

Overview of HMOs Mike Towers
Work Programme

27-Nov-2019

Work Programme
High Peak Borough Council Sports and Physical Activity 
Strategy - Update

Rob Wilkes

Derbyshire Police Update (TBC)
Use of Inflatables on Council Owned Land N Kemp
Report from Single Use Plastic Working Group N Kemp

5-Feb-2020

25-Mar-2020 Update Connex Community Support (formerly known as 
Buxton & Derbyshire Dales Volunteer Bureau)

Gill Geddes 

P
age 61



COMMUNITY
Work Programme

Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
Work Programme

Jun-20

Work Programme
July-20

AES Annual Performance Review AES
Work Programme

Oct-20

Update from NWAS
Update from Derbyshire Fire Service
Update from Police & Crime Commissioner
High Peak Place NHS Derby and Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group

Amy Busby

Environment Agency (flooding)

To add in

P
age 62



ECONOMY AND GROWTH 
Chairman: Councillor Siddall

Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby
Lead Officer: Dai Larner

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Progress report on One Public Estate programmes J Bagnall/M James
Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework D Larner
Rail Reinstatement Campaign – The Peaks and Dales Rail 
Link

S Chaytow Presentation

Work Programme

21-Nov-19

Affordable housing options
Community Infrastructure Levy report M James
Report back from public transport working group
Housing Infrastructure Fund and Accelerated Housing 
Delivery Programme Update

J Brooks

Work Programme

6-Feb-20

Tourist information 
Crescent
Arts strategy
Future High Street Fund: Heritage Action Zone H Pakpahan
Work Programme

26-Mar-20

Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
Work Programme

June-20

July-20 Work Programme

P
age 63



ECONOMY AND GROWTH 

Work ProgrammeSept-20

Transpennine Upgrade
High Peak Local Plan Review  

Visit Peak District
Chairman of Crescent Trust
Lidl Glossop
Old Nestle Buxton Site
Shop Units in High Peak and vacancy rates
Council website – tourism (hotels, events and social 
media)

To add in

Industrial Units – capacity, vacancy rates, brownfield sites

P
age 64



AUDIT & REGULATORY
Chairman: Councillor Thrane

Vice Chairman: Councillor Cross
Lead Officer: A Stokes

Date Items Lead Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report G Patterson
External Audit 2019/20 Audit Plan G Patterson
External Audit – Informing the Risk Assessment G Patterson
Risk Management Update V Higgins
Annual Governance Statement – Progress against 
2018/19 Action Plan A Stokes
Treasury Management Update C Hazeldene
20120/21 Treasury Management Strategy A Stokes
2019/20 Internal Audit Periodic Report J Leak
Work Programme

12-Feb-20

P
age 65



15 November 2019

Planned Audit Fee for 2020/21 G Patterson
External Audit Update G Patterson
Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2020/21 J Leak
2019/20 Internal Audit Periodic Report J Leak
Work Programme

20-May-20

Bitesize Briefing
Planned Audit Fee for 2020/21 A Sohal
External Audit Update A Sohal
Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2020/21 J Leak
2019/20 Internal Audit Periodic Report J Leak
Work Programme

June-2020

External Audit findings G Patterson
External Audit update G Patterson
Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 A Stokes
Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 A Stokes
Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 C Hazeldene
Treasury Management Update Report C Hazeldene
2018/19 Internal Audit Periodic Report J Leak
Internal Audit – Annual Report 2019/20 J Leak
2019/20 Annual Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit J Leak
2019/20 Annual Review of Effectiveness of the Audit and 
Regulatory Committee J Leak
Work Programme

Jul-2020

External Audit findings G Patterson
External Audit update G Patterson
Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 A Stokes
Draft Statement of Accounts 2020/21 A Stokes

Sept-20

Annual Treasury Management Report 2020/21 C Hazeldene

P
age 66



15 November 2019

Treasury Management Update Report C Hazeldene
2019/20 Internal Audit Periodic Report J Leak
Internal Audit – Annual Report 2020/21 J Leak
2020/21 Annual Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit J Leak
2020/21 Annual Review of Effectiveness of the Audit and 
Regulatory Committee J Leak
Work Programme

External Audit update G Patterson
External Audit 2018/19 Annual Audit Letter G Patterson
Treasury Management - Update Report C Hazeldene
2019/20 Internal Audit Periodic Report J Leak
Appointment of Mayor 2020/21 L Vernon
Risk Management Update V Higgins
Work Programme

Oct-20

Exercises to test Business Continuity Plans A Stokes
Polling of LGPS and arrangements ? A Stokes

To add in

P
age 67



15 November 2019

STANDARDS
Chairman: Councillor Quinn

Vice Chairman: Councillor Roberts
Lead Officer: M Trillo

Date Items Lead Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter M Trillo
Complaints – Review and Monitoring Report (Part 2) M Trillo
Standards Committee Annual Report L Vernon
Annual Review of Councillor Development L Vernon

13-Nov-2019

Complaints – Review and Monitoring Report (Part 2) M Trillo12-Mar-2020

Complaints – Review and Monitoring Report (Part 2) M TrilloJuly-2020

Transparency L Vernon
Ethical Framework Update L Vernon
ICT Security D Smith
Review of arrangements and procedures for dealing with 
Standards Complaints

M Trillo

Notes of Member Support and Development Group

To add in

P
age 68



15 November 2019

LICENSING
Chairman: Councillor Stone

Vice Chairman: Councillor Perkins 
Lead Officer: M Trillo

Date Items Lead Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Licensing Enforcement Activity A Patterson
The Air Quality(Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2019

A Patterson

Approved MOT Stations Update A Patterson

7-Nov-2019

Licensing Enforcement Activity A Patterson5-Mar-2020

Licensing Enforcement Activity A Patterson-Jul-2020

Busking Bye Law A PattersonTo add in

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/2020
	Appendix A for Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/2020
	Appendix B for Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/2020
	Appendix C for Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/2020

	9 Select Committee Work Programme
	12 Exempt Minutes
	13 Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa Project - Alternations to lease and support for Buxton Heritage Trust
	15 Contract Award - Supply and Installation of Windows and Doors Council Housing - Fixed Term Contract
	Appendix A 1 for Contract Award - Supply and Installation of Windows and Doors Council Housing - Fixed Term Contract


